
      PUBLIC NOTICE 

City of Alameda Healthcare District, December 11, 2023 

√ Included in the PDF posted on December 8, 2023

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, December 11, 2023 
OPEN SESSION: 5:30PM 

OPEN SESSSION: AH – EXECUTIVE BOARDROOM ADMINISTARTION BUILDING 
Join Zoom Meeting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/86372240952?pwd=Q0VpNXFncmYrakRTeFBSMjl0TGxBdz09 

Meeting ID: 863 7224 0952 
Passcode: 071524 

Dial by your location 
+1 669 444 9171 US
+1 669 900 6833 US

Office of the Clerk: 510-263-8223 
Members of the public who wish to comment on agenda items will be given an opportunity before or during the consideration of each agenda item. Those 
wishing to comment must complete a speaker card indicating the agenda item that they wish to address and present to the District Clerk.  This will ensure your 
opportunity to speak.  Please make your comments clear and concise, limiting your remarks to no more than three (3) minutes.

I. Call to Order   Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
  President 

II. Roll Call  Alixandria Williams, 
  District Clerk  

III. General Public Comment

IV. Adjourn into Executive Closed Session

V. Closed Session Agenda

A. Call to Order Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President  

B. Report on Health Care Trade Secrets Health and Safety Code Sec. 
32106 

C. Litigation  Government. Code Sec. 
54956.9 

VI. Adjourn to Open Session

VII. Reconvene to Public Session

VIII. Announcements From Closed Session Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President  

IX. REGULAR SESSION AGENDA



   PUBLIC NOTICE 

City of Alameda Healthcare District, December 11, 2023 

√ Included in the PDF posted on December 8, 2023

A  YTD AHS Reports 

✔ 1) Review and Acceptance of 2023 Audit 
ENCLOSURE  (Pages 4 - 24)

Rick Jackson 

✔ 2) Alameda Health System / Alameda Hospital Update 
ENCLOSURE   (Pages 25 - 43)

Mario Harding, CAO 
Alameda and San 
Leandro Hospitals  

3) Financial Update 
NO WRITTEN REPORT SUBMITTED 

Kimberly Miranda, 
AHS CFO 

✔ 4) Alameda Hospital Medical Staff Update 
ENCLOSURE (Pages 44 - 45)

Dr. Nikita Joshi, 
AH Medical Staff Chief 

B District & Operational Updates INFORMATIONAL 
1)) District Reports 
2) Presidents Report  

Submission of District Conflict of Intertest 
Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President  

3) Alameda Health System Board Liaison Report David Sayen 

✓ 4) Alameda Hospital Liaison Report Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President   

5) Property Oversight Committee Update Jeff Cambra 

6) 
District – AHS Joint Planning Committee – Updated 

Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President  
Gayle Codiga,  
1st Vice President 

✔ 7) Executive Director Report 
ENCLOSURE  (Pages 46 - 47)

Debi Stebbins,  
Executive Director 

Consent Agenda 
✔ 1) Acceptance of Minutes, October 11, 2023 

ENCLOSURE   (Pages 48 - 53)
Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President   

✔ 2) Acceptance of September and October  2023 Financial Statements 
ENCLOSURE    (Pages 54 - 67)

Dr. Robert Deutsch, 
President   

Action Items 
✔ 1) Recommendation to Approve True-Up Tax Distribution to AHS 

ENCLOSURE (Pages 68 - 69)   
Debi Stebbins,  
Executive Director 

✔ 2) Approval of Proposed 2024 Meeting Dates 
ENCLOSURE   (Page 70)

Debi Stebbins,  
Executive Director 

✔ 3) Election of Board Officers and Liaison Positions Dr. Robert Deutsch, 



   PUBLIC NOTICE 

City of Alameda Healthcare District, December 11, 2023 

√ Included in the PDF posted on December 8, 2023

ENCLOSURE (Page 71) President  
✔ 4) Recommendation on Pearl Street Roofing Contractor 

ENCLOSURE (Page 72 - 75
Jeff Cambra, 

5) Approval for Property Manager RFP Jeff Cambra, 

F February 12, 2024, Agenda Preview 
1) Acceptance of December 11, 2023, Minutes 
2) Acceptance of November and December 2023 Financial Statements 

G  Informational Items:  YTD AHS Reporting (CAO Hospital, Quality, Financial, Medical Staff) 
1) General Public Comments 

XI. Adjournment

Next Scheduled 
Meeting Date  

February 12, 2024 
(2nd Monday, every other 
month or as scheduled) 

Open Session 
5:30 PM 



Audited Financial Statements

CITY OF ALAMEDA
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

             June 30, 2023 



Audited Financial Statements

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2023

Management’s Discussion and Analysis    .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 1

Report of Independent Auditors .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 3

Statements of Net Position   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .  5

Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position    .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 6

Statements of Cash Flows .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 7

Notes to Financial Statements   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 9

Independent Auditors Report on Internal Control     .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   .   . 18



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2023

The District Clerk and Treasurer of the City of Alameda Health Care District (the District) has prepared this annual
discussion and analysis in order to provide an overview of the District’s performance for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2023 in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34, Basic Financials
Statements; Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments.  The intent of this document
is to provide additional information on the District’s historical financial performance as a whole in addition to
providing a prospective look at revenue growth, operating expenses, and capital development plans.  This discussion
should be reviewed in conjunction with the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and
accompanying notes to the financial statements to enhance one’s understanding of the District’s financial
performance.

Financial Highlights

For the  year of operations ending June 30, 2023, the District received $6,036,813 million in parcel taxes from the
County of Alameda and $184,057 in rental and related interest income.  The prior year taxes were $5,938,514 and
rental income was $177,909. 

Total District expenses for 2023 were $1,277,617, comprised of : $167,612 in depreciation and amortization, $66,973
in interest expense, $558,199 in professional fees, $125,911 in insurance and $358,922 in various other types of
expenses.  Transfers to the Alameda Health System were $3.5 million, leaving the District with an increase in net
position for the year of $15,042. 

Total District expenses for 2022 were $1,063,154: $170,640 in depreciation and amortization, $48,140 in interest
expense, $411,089 in professional fees, $99,309 in insurance and $333,976 in various other types of expenses. 
Transfers to the Alameda Health System were $3.5 million, leaving the District with an increase in net position for
the year of $1,515,694.

The District continues to operate as a health care district which allows for the continued collection of parcel taxes
and certain rental income from which the District will pay operating expenses.  Excess earnings are remitted to
Alameda Health System (AHS) in order to support the operations of the Alameda Hospital by AHS. 

Statements of Net Position 

As of June 30, 2023, the District’s current assets of $2,956,815 are comprised of $2,460,281 in operating cash,
$343,074 in parcel taxes and short-term lease receivables and $153,460 in prepaid assets.  Other assets include cash
and cash equivalents of $862,163 which are restricted for specific purposes, $2,111,184 of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and $166,472 in long-term lease receivables.  Current liabilities of $47,698 include $22,624
of current maturities of debt borrowings and $25,074 of various accounts payable due to certain vendors.  Long-term
debt borrowings amounted to $802,462 and deferred inflows of resources were $203,217. 

1



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

As of June 30, 2022, the District’s current assets of $2,949,313are comprised of $2,505,423 in operating cash,
$335,062 in parcel taxes and short-term lease receivables and $108,828 in prepaid assets.  Other assets include cash
and cash equivalents of $709,693 which are restricted for specific purposes, $2,278,048 of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation and $203,964 in other assets of which $203,217 is long-term lease receivables.  Current
liabilities of $103,465 include $36,784 of current maturities of debt borrowings and $32,435 of various accounts
payable due to certain vendors.  Long-term debt borrowings amounted to $806,121 and deferred inflows of resources
were $237,463.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District realized an increase in net position of $15,042 and an
increase in net position of $1,515,694, respectively.  The 2023 year approximated budget and expectations.

Next Year’s Budget

The District annual budget for 2024 approximates the 2023 results.  Excess earnings will continue to be remitted to
AHS to help support the operations of the Alameda Hospital, formerly operated by the District. 

2



JWT & Associates, LLP
A Certified Public Accountancy Limited Liability Partnership

1111 East Herndon Avenue, Suite 211, Fresno, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: (559) 431-7685 Email: rjctcpa@aol.com

 

                                                                                                  
Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Directors
City of Alameda Health Care District
Alameda, California

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the City of Alameda Health Care District, (the District)
which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial
statements.  

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.  We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.  

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the District’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such
opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion.

3

mailto:rjctcpa@aol.com
http://www.JSK.com


Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the District at June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended,
in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note A, the District adopted GASB 87 for the year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Required Supplementary Information

Management’s discussion and analysis is not a required part of the financial statements but is supplementary
information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  We have applied
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of measurement
and presentation of the supplementary information.  However, we did not audit the information and express no
opinion on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 9, 2023, on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is
solely to describe the  scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results
of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

JWT & Associates, LLP

Fresno, California
October 9, 2023

4



Statements of Net Position

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30

     2023          2022     

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $   2,460,281 $   2,505,423

Other receivables 343,074 335,062

Prepaid expenses and deposits         153,460         108,828

Total current assets 2,956,815 2,949,313

Assets limited as to use 862,163 709,693

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation      2,111,184      2,278,048

Long-term lease receivable         166,472         203,964

$   6,096,634 $   6,141,018

Liabilities

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of debt borrowings $        22,624 $        36,784

Accounts payable and accrued expenses           25,074           32,435

Total current liabilities 47,698 69,219

Debt borrowings, net of current maturities         802,462         806,121

Total liabilities 850,160 875,340

Deferred inflows of resources 203,217 237,463

Net position

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,111,184 2,278,048

Restricted, by contributors 862,163 709,693

Unrestricted      2,069,910      2,040,474

Total net position      5,043,257      5,028,215

$   6,096,634 $   6,141,018

       See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

5



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Year Ended June 30

     2023         2022    

Operating revenues

Rent and other operating revenue $      184,057 $      177,909

Total operating revenues 184,057 177,909

Operating expenses

Professional fees 558,199 411,089

Supplies 6,150 5,300

Purchased services 28,829 11,764

Building and equipment rent 20,430 19,269

Utilities and phone 14,820 12,256

Insurance 125,911 99,309

Depreciation and amortization 167,612 170,640

Other operating expenses         288,693         285,387

Total operating expenses      1,210,644      1,015,014

Operating loss      (1,026,587)      (837,105)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

District tax revenues 6,036,813 5,938,514

Interest income 7,765 8,919

Interest expense (66,973) (48,140)

Transfers to AHS     (4,935,976)     (3,546,494)

          Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)     1,041,629     2,352,799

Increase (decrease) in net position 15,042 1,515,694

Net position at beginning of the year      5,028,215      3,512,521

Net position at end of the year $   5,043,257 $   5,028,215

       See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

6



Statements of Cash Flows

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Year Ended June 30

     2023          2022     

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from operations $      220,555 $      229,397

Cash payments to suppliers and contractors     (1,129,271)        (884,469)

           Net cash (used in) operating activities (908,716) (655,072)

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

District tax revenues 6,036,813 5,938,514

Transfers to AHS     (4,935,976)     (3,546,494)

           Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 1,100,837 2,392,020

Cash flows from capital financing activities:

Principal payments on debt borrowings (17,820) (34,132)

Interest payments on debt borrowings          (66,973)          (48,140)

           Net cash (used in) capital financing activities (84,793) (82,272)

Cash flows from investing activities:

Net change in assets limited as to use        (152,470)          (31,097)

           Net cash (used in) investing activities        (152,470)          (31,097)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (45,142) 1,623,579

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year      2,505,423         881,844

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $   2,460,281 $   2,505,423

See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

7



Statements of Cash Flows (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

Year Ended June 30

     2023          2022     

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating (loss) $  (1,018,822) $     (828,186)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 167,612 170,640

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Other receivables (8,012) (25,923)

Prepaid expenses and deposits (44,632) (22,557)

Long-term lease receivable 36,745 (203,217)

Accounts payable and accrued expenses           (7,361)           16,708

Deferred inflows of resources          (34,246)         237,463

                       Net cash (used in) operating activities $     (908,716) $     (655,072)

See accompanying notes and auditor’s report

8



Notes to Financial Statements

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

June 30, 2023

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity: The City of Alameda Health Care District, (d.b.a. Alameda District), heretofore referred to as (the
District) is a public entity organized under Local District District Law as set forth in the Health and Safety Code of
the State of California.  The District is a political subdivision of the State of California and is generally not subject
to federal or state income taxes.  The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors, elected from within
the boundaries of the health care district to specified terms of office. The District is located in Alameda, California. 

Through April 30, 2014, the District operated Alameda Hospital (the Hospital), which comprised a 100-bed acute
care facility, a 35-bed sub acute unit within the Hospital, a 26-bed skilled nursing facility adjacent to the Hospital
campus and another 120-bed skilled nursing facility near the Hospital campus which the District took over operations
of in August, 2012.  Effective May 1, 2014, operations of the Hospital were turned over to the Alameda Health
System (AHS), a public hospital authority created by the Alameda County Board of Supervisors, through a joint
powers agreement (the affiliation agreement). Through this affiliation with AHS, the District continues to provide
health care services primarily to individuals who reside in the local geographic area.

Basis of Preparation:  The accounting policies and financial statements of the District generally conform with the
recommendations of the audit and accounting guide, Health Care Organizations, published by the American Institute
of Certified Public Accountants.  The financial statements are presented in accordance with the pronouncements of
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). For purposes of presentation, transactions deemed by
management to be ongoing, major or central to the provision of health care services are reported as operational
revenues and expenses.

The District uses enterprise fund accounting.  Revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis using the
economic resources measurement focus.  Based on GASB Statement Number 20, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, as
amended, the District has elected to apply the provisions of all relevant pronouncements of  the Financial Accounting
Standards Board (FASB) that do not conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis: The management’s discussion and analysis is a narrative introduction and
analytical overview of the District’s financial activities for the year being presented.  This analysis is similar to the
analysis provided in the annual reports of organizations in the private sector. As stated in the opinion letter, the
management’s discussion and analysis is not a required part of the financial statements but is supplementary
information and therefore not subject to audit procedures or the expression of an opinion on it by auditors.

9



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Use of Estimates:  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The District considers cash and cash equivalents to include certain investments in
highly liquid debt instruments, when present, with an original maturity of a short-term nature or subject to withdrawal
upon request.  Exceptions are for those investments which are intended to be continuously invested. Investments in
debt securities are reported at market value.  Interest, dividends and both unrealized and realized gains and losses on
investments are included as investment income in nonoperating revenues when earned.

Assets Limited as to Use:  Assets limited as to use include contributor restricted funds, amounts designated by the
Board of Directors for replacement or purchases of capital assets, and other specific purposes, and amounts held by
trustees under specified agreements.  Assets limited as to use consist primarily of deposits on hand with local banking
and investment institutions, and bond trustees. 

Risk Management: The District is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; business interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and illnesses; natural disasters; and medical
malpractice.  Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters.

Capital Assets: Capital assets consist of property and equipment and are reported on the basis of cost, or in the case
of donated items, on the basis of fair market value at the date of donation.  Routine maintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred.  Expenditures which increase values, change capacities, or extend useful lives are
capitalized.  Depreciation of property and equipment and amortization of property under capital leases are computed
by the straight-line method for both financial reporting and cost reimbursement purposes over the estimated useful
lives of the assets, which range from 10 to 40 years for buildings and improvements, and 3 to 10 years for major
moveable equipment. The District periodically reviews its capital assets for value impairment. 

Net Position: Net position is presented in three categories.  The first category is net position “invested in capital
assets, net of related debt”.  This category of net position consists of capital assets (both restricted and unrestricted),
net of accumulated depreciation and  reduced by the outstanding principal balances of any debt borrowings that were
attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those capital assets.  The second category is
“restricted” net position.  This category consists of externally designated constraints placed on those net position by
creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, law or regulations of other governments or
government agencies, or law or constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The third category is “unrestricted”
net position.  This category consists of net position that does not meet the definition or criteria of the previous two
categories.

10



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

District Tax Revenues: The District receives most of its financial support from parcel taxes.  These funds are used
to support operations and meet required debt service agreements.  They are classified as non-operating revenue as
the revenue is not directly linked to patient care.  Parcel taxes are levied by the County on the District’s behalf during
the year, and are intended to help finance the District’s activities during the same year. The County has established
certain dates to levy, lien, mail bills, and receive payments from property owners during the year.  Parcel taxes are
considered delinquent on the day following each payment due date. Property taxes are considered delinquent on the
day following each payment date.  Those dates are: (1) lien date of January 1; (2) due dates of November 1 and
February 1; and (3) delinquent dates of December 10 and April 10.

Operating Revenues and Expenses: The District’s statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position
distinguishes between operating and nonoperating revenues and expenses.  Operating revenues result from exchange
transactions associated with providing health care services, which is the District’s principal activity.  Operating
expenses are all expenses incurred to provide health care services, other than financing costs.  Nonoperating revenues 
and expenses are those transactions not considered directly linked to providing health care services.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement: In June, 2017 the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
released GASB 87 regarding changes in the way leases are accounted for.  GASB 87 superceded GASB 13 and GASB
62 and more accurately portrays lease obligations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the statement
of net position and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements.  The District has adopted GASB 87
effective July 1, 2021 in accordance with the timetable established by GASB 87.

NOTE B - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

As of June 30, 2023 and 2022, the District had deposits invested in various financial institutions in the form of cash
and cash equivalents in the amounts of $3,322,444 and $3,215,116 respectively.  All of these funds were held in
deposits, which are collateralized in accordance with the California Government Code (CGC), except for $250,000
per account that is federally insured. The CGC and the District’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy
requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial risk for deposits.  Custodial risk for deposits is the risk that,
in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, the District would not be able to recover its deposits
or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. Under the provisions of
the CGC, California banks and savings and loan associations are required to secure the District’s deposits by pledging
government securities as collateral.  The market value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s
deposits.  California law also allows financial institutions to secure District deposits by pledging first trust deed
mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the District’s total deposits.  The pledged securities are held by the
pledging financial institution’s trust department in the name of the District.

11



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE C - CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

District Tax Revenues :  The District receives approximately 97% of their revenues from the County of Alameda
under the parcel taxing program.  These funds are used to support operations and meet required debt service
agreements. Parcel taxes are levied by the County on the District’s behalf during the year.  Parcel taxes are secured
by properties within the District, management believes that there is no credit risk associated with these parcel taxes.

Financial Instruments:  Financial instruments,  potentially subjecting the District to concentrations of credit risk,
consist primarily of bank deposits in excess of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) limits of $250,000. 
Although deposits exceed the limit in certain bank accounts, management believes that the risk of loss is minimal
due to the high financial quality of the bank with which the District does business.  Management further believes that
there is no risk of material loss due to concentration of credit risk  with regards to investments as the District has no
investments in equity funds, closed-end funds, exchange-traded products, or other perceived “at risk” alternatives
as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

NOTE D - OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other receivables as were comprised of Alameda County parcel taxes in the amounts of $306,329 and $300,816 as
of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. They also included $36,745 and $34,246 of short term lease receivable as
of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE E - ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Assets limited as to use are related to the Jaber agreement as described in Note F and were comprised of cash and
cash equivalents in the amounts of $862,163 and $709,693 as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

NOTE F - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Alameda Hospital Foundation (the Foundation), has been established as a nonprofit public benefit corporation
under the Internal Revenue Code Section 501 c (3) to solicit contributions on behalf of the District.  Substantially
all funds raised except for funds required for operation of the Foundation, are distributed to the District or held for
the benefit of the District.  The Foundation's funds, which represent the Foundation's unrestricted resources, are
distributed to the District in amounts and in period determined by the Foundation's Board of Trustees, who may also
restrict the use of funds for District property and equipment replacement or expansion, reimbursement of expenses, 
or other specific purposes. Effective May 1, 2014, any further donations by the Foundation will be made directly to
AHS according to the affiliation agreement.  The Foundation is not considered a component unit of the District as
the Foundation, in the absence of donor restrictions, has complete and discretionary control over the amounts, the
timing, and the use of its donations to the District and management does not consider the assets material.

12



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE G - CAPITAL ASSETS 

The District received two parcels of improved rental-real estate by court order dated December 3, 2003, pursuant to
the terms of the Alice M. Jaber 1992 Trust.  As successor to the former non-profit Alameda Hospital, the District has
agreed to abide by the terms of the Trust Agreement.  The Trust Agreement and the will of Alice M. Jaber require
the District to account for the property as part of the Abraham Jaber and Mary A. Jaber Memorial Fund.  Among
other things, the District is prohibited from selling all or any portion of the parcels received until after the death of
certain named family members and, if the property is sold, it may not be sold to any descendant, spouse or relative
to the third degree of any such descendant of a named family member.  The net carrying value of this property is
$815,700 and $853,100 at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  Capital assets as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 were
comprised of the following:

Balance at Adjustments Balance at

June 30, 2022 & Additions Retirements June 30, 2023

Land and land improvements $   1,376,954       $   1,376,954

Buildings and improvements 25,519,556            25,519,556

Equipment 3,747,274        3,747,274

Construction-in-progress                                                                                      

   Totals at historical cost 30,643,784 30,643,784

Less accumulated depreciation   (28,365,736)        (166,864)                         (28,532,600)

Capital assets, net $   2,278,048 $     (166,864) $                    $   2,111,184

Balance at Adjustments Balance at

June 30, 2021 & Additions Retirements June 30, 2022

Land and land improvements $   1,376,954       $   1,376,954

Buildings and improvements 25,519,556            25,519,556

Equipment 3,747,274        3,747,274

Construction-in-progress                                                                                      

   Totals at historical cost 30,643,784 30,643,784

Less accumulated depreciation   (28,197,337)        (168,399)                         (28,365,736)

Capital assets, net $   2,446,447 $     (168,399) $                    $   2,278,048

13



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE H - DEBT BORROWINGS

As of June 30, 2023and 2022 debt borrowings were as follows:

     2023         2022    

Note payable to a bank; principal and interest at 5.75% due in                  
   monthly installments of $6,099 through April 15, 2033;

   collateralized by District property: $     825,086 $     842,905

825,086 842,905

Less current maturities of debt borrowings          (22,624)          (36,784)

 $      802,462  $      806,121

Future principal maturities for debt borrowings for the next succeeding years are approximately:  $22,624 in 2023;
$23,755 in 2024; $24,943 in 2025; $26,190 in 2026; and 27,500 in 2027.

NOTE I - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Operating Leases: The District leases various equipment and facilities under operating leases expiring at various
dates.  Total building and equipment rent expense for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, were $20,430 and
$19,269, respectively.   Future minimum lease payments for the succeeding years under operating leases as of June
30, 2023 and 2022 are not considered material as AHS has assumed responsibility for the significant  leases
associated with patient care  effective May 1, 2014 according to the affiliation agreement.  Other District lease or rent
agreements that have initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year are not considered material.

Litigation: The District may from time-to-time be involved in litigation and regulatory investigations which arise in
the normal course of doing business.  After consultation with legal counsel, management estimates that matters 
existing as of June 30, 2023 will be resolved without material adverse effect on the District’s future financial position,
results from operations or cash flows.

Risk Management Insurance Programs: AHS has assumed responsibility for all employee-related insurance
programs effective May 1, 2014.  The District has purchased tail coverage on other specific types of insurance where
appropriate in conjunction with the affiliation agreement in order to prevent any lapse in coverage.

14



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE J - AFFILIATION AGREEMENT

District management had ongoing financial challenges operating a small general acute care District with 24-hour
emergency services in this very competitive health care environment.  The current and future changes brought about
by healthcare reform at both the State and Federal levels, as well as other regulatory requirements and reimbursement
reductions greatly compounded the challenges facing the District.  Furthermore, the District was in need of capital
resources to assist with required seismic retrofits, electronic health record implementation and other deferred facility
and equipment replacements.  Due to this situation,  the District Board of Directors executed an affiliation agreement
with a local health care system during the year ended June 30, 2014. 

Effective May 1, 2014, operations of the Hospital were turned over to the Alameda Health System (AHS), a public
hospital authority created by the Alameda County Board of Supervisors through a joint powers agreement.  The
agreement called for the transfer of specific assets and liabilities of the District to AHS which were related to the
operations of the Alameda  Hospital.  The District maintained ownership of the Alameda Hospital land and real
property (buildings and fixed equipment).  The transfer included, without limitation, all cash and other deposits,
accounts receivable, personal property (including all supplies, equipment and other fixed assets), intangible property,
contractual rights, licenses, intellectual property and claims and causes of action, together with all the rights and
privileges in any way belonging thereto, free and clear of all encumbrances.  Through this affiliation, the District will
continue to support the providing of health care services to those individuals, primarily, who reside in the local
geographic area.

Transfers made to AHS related to this affiliation agreement for the year ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 amounted to
$4,935,976 and $3,546,494, respectively.

NOTE K - LEASES

As of July 1, 2021 the District adopted the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) 87 requiring certain
changes in the way the District accounted for leases, both as a lessee and as a lessor.

Lessor: The District leases the certain properties to a third party under an operating lease.  Lease commencement
occurs on the date the District third party takes possession or control of the properties.  Original terms for the lease
is 5 years.  This lease contains an option to extend for another 5 years.  The lease also contains an option to terminate
the lease at the end of five years, with a written notice.  For purposes of lease calculations for this operating lease,
it is assumed that the termination clause would not be exercised due to the significant penalty associated with the
early termination conditions.

The lease does not contain a readily determinable discount rate.  The estimated borrowing rate of 3.5% was used to
discount the remaining cash flows for this operating lease.

15



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE K - LEASES (continued)

This lease requires payment of common area maintenance and real estate taxes which represent the majority of
variable lease costs.  Variable lease costs are excluded from the present value of lease obligations.

The District’s lease agreement does not contain any material restrictions, covenants, or any material residual value
guarantees.

Lessor-lease related assets and liabilities as of June 30, 2023 and 2022 consist of the following:

Assets:      2023          2022     

Lease receivable - current portion $         36,246 $         34,246

Lease receivable - long term portion          166,472          203,217

       Total lease assets $       203,217 $       237,463

Deferred inflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources $       203,217 $       237,463

       Total deferred inflows of resources
              

$       203,217 $       237,463

Total operating lease revenue under this lease arrangement for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 was $34,246
and $31,869, respectively. Due to the change with GASB 87 there was $7,765 and $8,919 of interest income
associated with the lease revenues for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.  The District has other
operating lease revenue not subject to GASB 87 reporting requirements of $149,811 and $146,040 for the years ended
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively.

The future minimum rental payments required under operating lease obligations as of June 30, 2023, having initial
or remaining non-cancelable lease terms in excess of one year are summarized as follows:

16



Notes to Financial Statements (continued)

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTH CARE DISTRICT

NOTE K - LEASES (continued)

Years ending June 30,

2024 $       43,272

2025    44,570

2026    45,907

2027 47,284

Thereafter              40,586

Total     221,619

Less: interest          (18,403)

                               Present value of lease liabilities $      203,217
 

The weighted average for the remaining lease term of this operating lease is 58 months and the weighted average
discount rate for this operating leases is 3.5%

NOTE L - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management evaluated the effect of subsequent events on the financial statements through October 9, 2023, the date
the financial statements are issued, and determined that there are no material subsequent events that have not been
disclosed.

17



JWT & Associates, LLP
A Certified Public Accountancy Limited Liability Partnership

1111 East Herndon Avenue, Suite 211, Fresno, California 93720
Voice: (559) 431-7708 Fax: (559) 431-7685

Independent Auditors Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

The Board of Directors
City of Alameda Health Care District
Alameda, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States,  the financial statements of the business-type activities of the City of Alameda  Health
Care District (the District) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the District’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated
October 9, 2023.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies.  Given those limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

18



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement.  However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion.   The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control or on
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the District’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

JWT & Associates,LLP

Fresno, California
October 9, 2023

19



Alameda Hospital Update
presented to Alameda Health Care District Board Meeting  ●  December 11, 2023

Mario Harding, FACHE, Chief Administrative Officer-Community Hospitals
Alameda Hospital and San Leandro Hospital
Acting VP, System Support Services



Sustainability:
Financials

Refer to CFO Report



• Alameda Hospital Seismic 2030 Strategy Group established to 
meet compliance standards.

• Met with HCAI/OSHPD team on November 30, 2023, to 
progress towards Nonstructural Performance Category 2 (NPC 
2) compliance 

• January 1, 2024 annual status reporting deadlines to external 
agencies and hospital signage

Seismic 2030 Compliance Update



Quality Care













Home | Hospital Safety Grade
https://www.hospitalsafetygrade.org/

https://www.hospitalsafetygrade.org/
https://www.hospitalsafetygrade.org/






Alameda County EMS 
Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT)

October 2023





ACEMS_Patient Offload and Ambulance Availability v.4.pdf (acgov.org)

https://ems.acgov.org/ems-assets/docs/Documents-Forms/ACEMS_Patient%20Offload%20and%20Ambulance%20Availability%20v.4.pdf










 
 

Alameda Hospital Medical Executive Committee (MEC)  
 

Report to the Alameda Health Care District Board 
 

 Report to Alameda Health Care District Board  is from the Alameda Hospital Medical Staff 

MEC Meeting Date: November 17, 2023 

Page 1 of 2 

 

December 12, 2023 
 
The Medical Executive Committee met on November 17, 2023, to review and approve the routine 
items from the Departmental reports, Committees reports and Administrative reports. MEC report 
includes the organizational pillars listed below: 

 
 Community 
 Quality 
 Staff/Patient Experience 
 Sustainability 

 
A. Community 

 

• Alameda Hospital Status Report and Planning for the Future 
o Joint Powers Affiliation Agreement (JPA) meeting Option 3b presented which 

expanded to options 3b 1, 2, 3 
 

B. Quality 
 

• Dr. Taft Bhuket appointment as Medical Staff Representative to the AHS Board of Trustees 
for term of January 1, 2024-December 31, 2026 
o Request to forward the nomination to the Board of Supervisors for appointment. 
o Working with leadership and the Board to seek support for a representative from our 

Medical Staff. 
 

• The MEC reviewed and approved documents which are key to the operational functions 
and compliance with regulatory requirements including the below: 
o Epic Order Sets 
o Policies and Procedures  

 Approval of the Quality Assurance & Performance Improvement Plan (QAIP) 
 Medical Staff Professionalism and Conduct revised policy and procedure that 

supports the standards and expectations set by our MECs around professional 
behavior, ethics, and integrity. 

 

• 2023 BETA Incentive Programs 
o COS & JC Heart Domain 
o Rapid Event Investigation & Analysis Heart Domain 

 
• FY 2024 QPSC True North Metric Dashboard 

o Includes 46 measures spread across 5 domains related to STEEEP- safety, timely 
effective, efficient, equity, patient centered 

 
 



 
 

Alameda Hospital Medical Executive Committee (MEC)  
 

Report to the Alameda Health Care District Board 
 

 Report to Alameda Health Care District Board  is from the Alameda Hospital Medical Staff 

MEC Meeting Date: November 17, 2023 

Page 2 of 2 

• Disaster Action Response Team (DART)  
o Multidisciplinary Task Force and multi-level team of clinical leaders and executive team 

focused on development of an integrated system response within AHS  
 Preparation, planning, prehospital, procedures for hospital management, 

physician leaders 
 Preparation to respond to mass casualty incidents; drills have been identified as a 

critical component in the response process 
 

C. Staff/Patient Experience 
 

• Access to parking for clinicians 
• Patient and Family Advisory Council Presentation 

o Emphasis on involvement with clinical leadership and front-line staff 
o Efforts on patient outreach during significant events 

 
D. Sustainability 

 

• Medical Executive Committee pilot of combined meetings focusing on quality and safety 
• Contingency planning of the infrastructure and operational needs 

o HVAC update and future direction 
• Ongoing meetings of the Joint Planning Committee 

 
 



 
 

 
December 11, 2023 
 
Memorandum to:  City of Alameda Health Care District 
    Board of Directors 
 
From    Debi Stebbins 
    Executive Director 
 
RE:    Executive Director Report – December  2023 

 

1. Ethics Training 

 

All of the Board members have completed the Ethics Trainiing course that is required 
for public officials every two years.  Thank you for your compliance.  This will be noted 
in our certification application to the Association of California Health Care Districts. 

 

2. Conflict of Interest Statements 

 
All Board members need to complete a Conflict of Interest statement for FY 2023.  
Copies were sent via email and will also be available in hard copy form at our 
December 11 Board meeting. 

 

3. Discussions with AHS Leadership 

Dr. Deutsch, Gary Hicks,  and I met with two of the AHS Board members (Alan Fox and 
Mark Friedman) along with CEO James Jackson to provide them with an overview of 
how the Certificate of Participation “loan” will work to finance the 2030 seismic retrofit 
project.  I think that meeting went well.  The AHS Board members asked excellent 
questions.  The next steps will be a presentation to the AHS Finance Committee and 
the AHS Board of Trustees in early January, 2024.    

 

Tom Driscoll has drafted an amended Joint Powers Agreement that can be presented to 
AHS leadership for review and approval once the concept of pursuing the Certificate of 
Participation is approved by the AHS Board of Trustees. 

 



Executive Director Report, page 2 

4. Pursuit of the Statutory Lien 

One of the steps necessary to secure the best possible credit rating for the District in 
issuing a Certificate of Participation is the passage of a Statutory Lien.  I am working 
with MJM Advocacy, the advocacy firm that secured our last assembly bill to extend the 
seismic deadlines for Alameda Hospital, to help us with this process.  We plan to ask 
Assemblymember Mia Bonta to introduce such a focused bill on an expedited process 
in the legislature in January 2024.  There is ample precedent for such bills by District 
hospitals. 

 

5. Meetings with HCAI 

On November 30,, 2023, I participated in a zoom call with several representatives from 
HCAI and AHS leadership.  Katy Ford from Ratcliff and Thorton Tomassetti staff also 
participated.  The purpose of the meeting was to provide an overview of our 2030 
Seismic Retrofit plans and financing strategy.  A major portion of the meeting also 
focused on AHS’ plans for compliance with NPC standards that are required over the 
next couple of years.  AHS leadership seems to be on top of these deadlines and I am 
participating in biweekly calls with their staff to monitor progress on the NPC 
requirements. 

 

 

 



Meeting Minutes for October 10, 2023, Open Session 
Location: Conference Room A – Alameda Hospital  

Board Members Present Legal Counsel Present Also Present  Absent 

Robert Deutsch, MD 
Gayle Codiga,  

Stewart Chen, DC 
David Sayen 
Jeff Cambra 

Tom Driscoll Debi Stebbins        
Alixandria Williams 

Mario Harding    
Chris Adams  
Grace Mesina        

Agenda Item/Topic Presentation and Discussion Notes Action/Follow-Up 

Call to Order The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by the Board president Dr. Robert Deutsch. 

Roll Roll was called prior to the start of the closed session. A quorum of Directors was present. 

Alameda Hospital 
Update       

Mr. Harding presented the group with a side-by-side analysis of both the old and new HVAC 
replacement plans. He and Dr. Deutsch met with the Alameda Hospital Foundation during their August 
meeting and asked for $2 million to be put toward funding the HVAC replacement project. The 
Foundation approved the request on September 19, 2023. The $2 million gift is expected to be used 
during FY 2025 and has decreased the completion timeline from 5 years to 4 years. Mr. Harding noted 
that each contract takes about 30-45 days to be finalized through AHS's contract office. He will 
continue to keep the District updated as contracts are approved, and work commences. Additionally, 
department leaders have mapped out contingency plans should any of the HVAC systems fail before 
they are completely replaced. 



 

 

Mr. Harding informed the group that Jessica Vinkavich, RN, MSN, has been promoted to Nurse 
Manager for Telemetry and Medical Surgical Units. 

Mr. Espinoza updated the group that Park Bridge, South Shore, and the Sub Acute unit were 
highlighted in Newsweek, The Alameda Post, and LinkedIn on September 27th among the best nursing 
homes in the country. This is the third time they have been recognized on a national level.  

Patient Experience   Chris Adams, Vice President of Patient Care Services, oversees all nursing care services at Alameda and 
San Leandro Hospitals and provided an overview of August's Patient Care Experience Report. There was 
significant improvement in the August Patient Experience report, with noteworthy areas, such as 
communication with nurses and physicians, meeting or surpassing the projected goals. 
Mr. Adams has implemented monthly Care Experience meetings with nursing leadership from San 
Leandro and Alameda Hospitals. The purpose of these meetings is to discuss patient care experiences 
and share best practices across the hospitals. Additionally, Mr. Adams aims to include support staff (e.g., 
EVS, Lab Tech, Pharmacy Techs) in rounding, as patient care should involve all areas of the hospital, not 
just nurses.  
Nurse Contract Negotiations: The California Nurses Association's contract ends on December 31, 2023. 
AHS has assembled a team to initiate bargaining with the association beginning in early November. 
Ideally, having a single contact for both Alameda and San Leandro Hospitals would be beneficial, allowing 
nurses to float between the two campuses and assist with staffing issues. The nurse vacancy rate for 
Alameda Hospital is between 35-40 percent, compared to the national average of 15 percent. Hopefully, 
through the CNA negotiations, the rate adjustment per hour for nurses will increase, encouraging more 
nurses to work for Alameda Hospital.  
New Grad Programs: Mr. Adams reported that, through the new grad program, five nurses have been 
recently hired for the Med Surg and Telemetry units, and two nurses have been hired for the ED. Jessica 
Vinkavich recently hired a charge nurse position, which had been challenging to fill through Incredible 
Health (a national database of nurses). 

 

Financial Update    Ms. Mesina presented the August financial report to the group. There were many green areas in the 
August report, indicating improvements. General Acute days increased by 15%, and General Acute 
discharges exceeded the expected budget, increasing by 23%. The average length of stay is slightly 
below the 5-day budget, with an average of 4.7 days for August. Observation equivalent days are below 
budget as there are fewer observations taking place at this time. Overall, there has been an increase in 
volume with lower Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs). Emergency visits increased by 9%, and the overall 
surgery volume increased by 27%. 
Skilled Nursing Facilities (SNFs) have slightly decreased in patient days, with 79% occupancy in August 
compared to the budgeted 92%. South Shore has not been included in Alameda's Financial Reports 
since it moved to the Fairmont location. Once South Shore moves back this month, that data will be 
included in future financial reports. The AHS financial team is still looking into opportunities to decrease 

 



the length of stay. The variance in days is 451 days, with a 23% increase. The opportunity days are still 
increasing, meaning patients are staying longer than expected. 
Alameda Hospital Entity Financials: 

• The collection percent was 15.1% in August compared to 15.6% for the previous month
• Salaries and Benefits are positive due to lower utilization, and this does include registry.
• Purchase services are over budget due to the MRI alliance invoice being added during August.
• There is $22,000 for the Alameda psychologist that was not budgeted. Ms. Mesina will look into

this.
• Materials and supplies are slightly over budget due to purchased pharmaceuticals and lab

reagents.
• Facilities are over budget by $214,000. There was $144,000 in repairs (elevator, flooring, rooter

rooter) and utilities with a contribution margin of negative $1 million compared to a budget of
$967,000 for a variance of $91

Mr. Harding noted that the overall revenue is up $521,000 year-to-date compared to August 2022. 
Salaries and benefits are down by $1.15 million, and overall operating expenses are down by $1.2 
million. The contribution margin is much better this year compared to last year. Additionally, the AHS 
financial team will be combining the monthly operating review meetings with San Leandro. There will still 
be an entity breakout for Alameda Hospital. There was an overall positive bottom line due to the Anthem 
Blue Cross settlement, thanks to the Revenue Cycle consultants  ability to collect payment. 
Dr. Deutsch suggested looking into the categories that make the length of stay longer than it should be. 
Ms. Mesina noted that AHS and Care Management Clinical Intelligence, are working on a substantial 
incentive to address this issue. 

Medical Staff Report Dr. Joshi provided a written report from the Medical Executive Committee on page 44. The report 
summarized the Medical Star Rating, which measures clinical performance, patient satisfaction surveys, 
infection surveys, and various other areas. This rating is based on a scale of 1-5, with five being the 
best rating a hospital can receive. Alameda Hospital received an overall four-star rating, while sub-acute 
services, Park Bridge, and South Shore received five-star ratings. 
Sue Fairbanks will provide an update on the Creedon Wound Center during the December District 
Board meeting. 

Presidents Report Dr. Deutsch had no business to report on. 

AHS Liaison Report Mr. Sayen noted that AHS is undertaking an initiative called DIVE (Difference Invited Values and 
Embraced) with Brown Association Associates. The goal is to bridge any gaps related to inclusion and 
to create an environment where everyone feels welcome, regardless of their differences. 



 

 

Mr. Sayen wanted to express how significant having a four-star rating is, as there are  many 5-star 
ratings. In fact, many other local hospitals have much lower ratings, such as Highland with a one-star 
rating and Kaiser Oakland with a two-star rating. 

Hospital Liaison 
Report  

Dr. Deutsch informed the group that there is currently no full-time mammography technician at Alameda 
Hospital. However, there is a traveling technician who is working at Alameda Hospital two days a week 
until they can find someone to fill the full-time position. 

 

Executive Director 
Report  

Ms. Stebbins informed the group about the Community Health Fair on October 21st, from 9 am to 12 
pm. The District will have a booth with materials to highlight the relationship between the District and 
AHS, as well as the seismic challenges we are facing. Board participation is encouraged, as it presents 
a wonderful opportunity to engage with the public. 
Ms. Stebbins noted that some Districts that run hospitals have not yet begun to prepare for the 2030 
seismic requirements. The approval process for bond financing takes about 18 to 24 months, and 
there's a strong possibility that the completion date will be after the 2030 deadline. Legislation is still 
pending to potentially extend the deadline for another five years, and there is discussion of legislation to 
provide financing sources for districts facing financial challenges. 
Out of the 70 California Health Care Districts, only 14 of them are certified under ACHD guidelines. Ms. 
Stebbins has reached out to ACHD to find out what the District would need to become certified. This 
includes refining some policies and procedures, such as how the District complies with the Brown Act 
and establishing a  governance self-evaluation process for the board. Ms. Stebbins will be working on a 
draft certification packet to present to the Board, ideally by the end of the calendar year. It is important 
to note that holding a leadership position on the Board of the Association requires certification as a 
District hospital. Additionally, being a certified District will help during the Bond Financing process and 
assure stakeholders that good governance practices and policies for public interaction are in place.  
Both Ms. Stebbins and Mr. Sayen completed an ethics training course during the ACHD annual 
meeting. AB 1234 applies to public agencies and requires that every two years, all governance 
members and executive staff of the District complete ethics training. The training covers topics like 
conflict of interest, permissible campaign contributions, and knowledge of the Brown Act, among other 
areas. Ms. Stebbins will send out information for the Board to enable them to complete the course by 
December 31, 2023. 
The annual audit was received today and has been presented for your review. Action will need to be 
taken on the audit during the December Board meeting, at which time Rick Jackson will address any 
questions the Board may have. Once the audit is approved, it will be followed by a true-up payment of 
the parcel tax distribution. Two parcel tax distributions are made to AHS each year, which have been 
completed for 2023, followed by the final true-up payment. 

 

AHS JPC Update  Dr. Deutsch updated the group on the progress the committee has made throughout the year. Out of all 
the options studied, the entire committee has agreed that Option 3B would be the best choice to move 

 



 

 

forward with. This option would include 39 acute beds (8 ICU beds and 31 Telemetry beds), 35 Sub-
Acute beds, and 16 Medi-SNF beds for more complex patients with higher per diems. The project will be 
estimated at $75 million. Using the $5.9 million parcel tax as security for the COP (Certificate of 
Participation) would result in a loss to AHS of $200,000 a year. 
Dr. Deutsch asked the Board to review the resolution later and approve Option 3B. Ms. Miranda and her 
team have put in a lot of effort for the last 10 months and made the numbers noticeably clear to choose 
an option. 

Property Oversight 
Committee  

Mr. Cambra informed the board that there had been previous discussions about whether or not to sell 
the properties. He has consulted with legal counsel to determine the feasibility of this and to gain an 
understanding of the necessary steps. Mr. Cambra also provided the distribution list that the District has 
been receiving, which goes directly to Alameda Hospital and averages $144,000 annually. The 
distribution formula consists of 20% of the corpus, which grows each year, and 20% of the income from 
both District properties from the previous year. 
Evaluation in Unit E: 
Mr. Cambra met with Drysdale ( the Districts property management company) to discuss the challenges 
Unit E has faced in being rented out. It was suggested that the strong, old smell, as well as the outdated 
kitchen and bathroom, may be delaying the rental of Unit E. To address this, it was recommended to 
consider reducing the unit's price to align it with the property's condition or to offer move-in incentives, 
such as one month's free rent. 
If the decision is not to sell the property, there are several capital improvement projects that need to be 
completed based on a priority that makes sense. Mr. Cambra will provide the board with RFPS for the 
replacement of the roof and a property management company during the December meeting. 

 

 

Consent Agenda 

 A. Acceptance of Minutes from September 5, 2023 
B. Acceptance of Financial Statements, from July 2023 
C. Acceptance of Financial Statements, from August 2023  

A motion to accept the Consent Agenda was made by Ms. Codiga and seconded by Mr. Sayen. The 
motion was unanimously approved.  
 

Motion Approved  

Action Items 



A. Proposal to Support Option 3B and Financing Strategy for 2030 Seismic Retrofit for Alameda
Hospital

A motion to support the proposal of Option 3B was made by Mr. Cambra and seconded by Mr. Sayen 
the motion was unanimously approved. 

B. Proposal to Engage Ratcliff Architects for Next Phase of Seismic Planning
The estimates being used are over a year old and need to be updated in order to get a more detailed 
cost estimate. A motion to accept the proposal to engage Ratcliff was made by Ms. Codiga and 
seconded by Mr. Sayen. The motion was unanimously approved. 

Motions Approved 

New Business Mr. Sayen attended the Chamber of Commerce Economic Development Report meeting, during which 
Mia Bonta noted the importance of healthcare in Alameda.  
Ms. Stebbins noted that there is a draft Strategic Plan for the City of Alameda that includes no 
commitment to healthcare. It would be beneficial for the board to provide information and express the 
importance of healthcare on the island. 

Minutes submitted by: Alixandria Williams, Executive Assistant 

Approved: 



CITY OF ALAMEDA 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

FOR THE PERIOD 

(September 1-30, 2023) 



Balance Sheets

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT As of As of

6/30/2023 9/30/2023

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,460,281$     554,430$   

Grant and other receivables 205,058         1,411,342  

Prepaid expenses and deposits 153,460         136,057  

Total current assets 2,818,799  2,101,828  

Assets limited as to use 862,163  895,153  

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,109,650  2,067,550  

5,790,611  5,064,531  

Other Assets (0) (0) 

Deferred outflows of resources 203,217  203,217 

Total assets 5,993,828$   5,267,748$   

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of debt borrowings 22,624$   23,832$   

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 53,874  55,174  

Total current liabilities 76,498  79,006  

Deferred revenue 203,217  203,217  

Debt borrowings net of current maturities 802,462  795,825  

Total liabilities 1,082,177  1,078,048  

Net position:

Total net position (deficit) 4,911,651  4,189,700  

Total liabilities and net position 5,993,828$     5,267,748$   



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual Budget

YTD YTD YTD

6/30/2023 9/30/2023 6/30/2023 Variance

Revenues and other support

District Tax Revenues 5,900,000$     1,514,103$     1,514,103$   -               0%

Rents 191,822           48,143             53,750           (5,607)     110%

Other revenues -                        -                        -                      -               

Total revenues 6,091,822       1,562,245       1,567,853      (5,607)     

Expenses

Professional fees - executive director 175,433           49,041             46,250           (2,791)     -6%

Professional fees - Assistant 84,246             27,939             27,500           (439)        -2%

Professional fees 291,779           73,264             78,025           4,761      6%

Supplies 6,150               6,768               500                 (6,268)     -1254%

Purchased services 4,100               -                        2,415             2,415      100%

Repairs and maintenance 24,729             9,423               10,875           1,452      13%

Rents 20,430             5,733               5,107             (626)        -12%

Utilities 14,820             2,372               3,000             628         21%

Insurance 125,911           45,641             40,112           (5,529)     -14%

Depreciation and amortization 169,146           42,100             47,600           5,500      

Interest 66,973             12,071             9,587             (2,484)     -26%

Travel, meeting and conferences 8,691               8,029               3,750             (4,279)     -114%

Other expenses 15,941             1,816               8,643             6,827      79%

Community projects and programs 264,058           -                        65,500           65,500    100%

Total expenses 1,272,409       284,196           348,864         64,667    

Operating gains 4,819,412       1,278,049       1,218,989      59,060    5%

Transfers (4,935,976)      (2,000,000)      (1,274,924)    

Increase(Decrease) in net position (116,564)         (721,951)         (55,935)          

Net position at  beginning of the year 5,028,215       4,911,651       -                      
Net position at the  end of the period 4,911,651$     4,189,700$     (55,935)$        



Statements of Cash Flows

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual Budget

YTD YTD YTD

6/30/2023 9/30/2023 6/30/2023

Increase(Decrease) in net position (116,564)$       (721,951)$   (55,936)$   

Add Non Cash items

Depreciation 169,146  42,100  47,600  

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Grant and other receivables 130,004  (1,206,283)  -  

Prepaid expenses and deposits (44,631)  17,403  -  

Deferred outflows of resources -  -  

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (12,809)  1,300  -  

Deferred revenues -  -  

Net Cash provided(used) by operating activities 125,146  (1,867,432)  (8,336)  

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment (0) - -  

Changes in assets limited to use (152,470)  (32,990) -  

Net Cash used in investing activities (152,470)  (32,990)  -  

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on debt borrowings (17,818)  (5,429)  -  

Net cash used by financing activities (17,818)  (5,429)  -  

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (45,141)  (1,905,851)  (8,336)  

Cash at the beginning of the year 2,505,423  2,460,281  204,720  

Cash at the end of the period 2,460,281$   554,430$         196,384$   



Balance Sheets

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT District Jaber As of District Jaber As of

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 6/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2023

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,460,281$    -$  2,460,281$     554,430$        -$  554,430$         

Grant and other receivables 205,058 0 205,058 1,411,342 0 1,411,342

Prepaid expenses and deposits 153,460 (0) 153,460 136,057 (0) 136,057

Total current assets 2,818,799 (0) 2,818,799 2,101,829 (0) 2,101,828

Due To Due From 24,037 (24,037) 0 24,037 (24,037) 0

Assets limited as to use 0 862,163 862,163 0 895,153 895,153

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,293,950 815,700 2,109,650 1,261,200 806,350 2,067,550

4,136,785 1,653,826 5,790,611 3,387,065 1,677,466 5,064,531

Other Assets (0) 0 (0) (0) 0 (0)

Deferred outflows of resources 203,217 203,217 203,217 0 203,217

Total assets 4,340,002 1,653,826 5,993,828 3,590,282 1,677,466 5,267,748

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of debt borrowings 22,624 0 22,624 23,832 0 23,832

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 53,874 0 53,874 55,174 0 55,174

Total current liabilities 76,498 0 76,498 79,006 0 79,006

Deferred revenue 203,217 0 203,217 203,217 0 203,217

Debt borrowings net of current maturities 802,462 0 802,462 795,825 0 795,825

Total liabilities 1,082,177 0 1,082,177 1,078,048 0 1,078,048

Net position:

Total net position (deficit) 3,257,824 1,653,826 4,911,651 2,512,234 1,677,466 4,189,700

Total liabilities and net position $4,340,002 $1,653,826 $5,993,828 $3,590,281 $1,677,466 $5,267,748



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual

District Jaber YTD District Jaber YTD

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 6/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2023

Revenues and other support

District Tax Revenues 5,900,000 0 5,900,000 1,514,103 0 1,514,103

Rents 0 191,822 191,822 0 48,143 48,143

Other revenues 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total revenues 5,900,000 191,822 6,091,822 1,514,103 48,143 1,562,245

Expenses
Professional fees - executive director 175,433 0 175,433 49,041 0 49,041

Professional fees - Assistant 84,246 0 84,246 27,939 0 27,939

Professional fees 282,128 9,651 291,779 70,903 2,361 73,264

Supplies 6,150 0 6,150 6,768 0 6,768

Purchased services 4,100 0 4,100 0 0 0

Repairs and maintenance 249 24,480 24,729 0 9,423 9,423

Rents 20,430 0 20,430 5,733 0 5,733

Utilities 2,479 12,341 14,820 569 1,803 2,372

Insurance 125,911 0 125,911 45,641 0 45,641

Depreciation and amortization 131,746 37,400 169,146 32,750 9,350 42,100

Interest 66,975 0 66,975 12,071 0 12,071

Travel, meeting and conferences 8,691 0 8,691 8,029 0 8,029

Other expenses 13,949 1,993 15,940 250 1,566 1,816

Community projects and programs 264,058 0 264,058 0 0 0

Total expenses 1,186,546 85,865 1,272,410 259,693 24,503 284,196

Operating gains 4,713,454 105,957 4,819,411 1,254,409 23,640 1,278,049

Transfers (4,935,976) 0 (4,935,976) (2,000,000) 0 (2,000,000)

Increase(Decrease) in net position (222,522) 105,957 (116,565) (745,591) 23,640 (721,951)

Net position at  beginning of the year 3,480,346 1,547,869 5,028,216 3,257,825 1,653,826 4,911,651
Net position at the  end of the period 3,257,824 1,653,826 4,911,651 2,512,234 1,677,466 4,189,700



Statements of Cash Flows

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual

District Jaber YTD District Jaber YTD

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 6/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2023 9/30/2023

Increase(Decrease) in net position (222,522) 105,957 (116,565) (745,591) 23,640 (721,951)

Add Non Cash items

Depreciation 131,746 37,400 169,146 32,750 9,350 42,100

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Grant and other receivables 130,003 0 130,003 (1,206,283) 0 (1,206,283)

Prepaid expenses and deposits (44,631) 0 (44,631) 17,403 0 17,403

Deferred outflows of resources

Due To Due From (9,113) 9,113 0 0 0 0

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (12,807) 0 (12,807) 1,300 0 1,300

Deferred revenues 0 0 0 0

Net Cash provided(used) by operating activities (27,324) 152,470 125,146 (1,900,422) 32,990 (1,867,433)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment 0 0 0 0 0 0

Changes in assets limited to use 0 (152,470) (152,470) 0 (32,990) (32,990)

Net Cash used in investing activities 0 (152,470) (152,470) 0 (32,990) (32,990)

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on debt borrowings (17,818) 0 (17,818) (5,429) 0 (5,429)

Net cash used by financing activities (17,818) 0 (17,818) (5,429) 0 (5,429)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (45,142) 0 (45,142) (1,905,852) 0 (1,905,852)

Cash at the beginning of the year 2,505,423 (0) 2,505,423 2,460,281 (0) 2,460,281

Cash at the end of the period 2,460,281 (0) 2,460,281 554,430 0 554,430



 

 

CITY OF ALAMEDA 
HEALTH CARE DISTRICT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

FOR THE PERIOD 

 (October 1 -31, 2023)  



Balance Sheets

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT As of As of

6/30/2023 10/31/2023

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,460,281$     474,806$         

Grant and other receivables 306,329           2,017,313       

Prepaid expenses and deposits 153,460           121,212           

Total current assets 2,920,070       2,613,331       

Assets limited as to use 862,163           907,496           

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 2,111,184       2,055,051       

5,893,416       5,575,877       

Other Assets (0)                      (0)                      

Lease receiveable 203,217           203,217           

Total assets 6,096,633$     5,779,094$     

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of debt borrowings 22,624$           23,832$           

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,074             22,474             

Total current liabilities 47,698             46,306             

Deferred inflows of resources 203,217           203,217           

Debt borrowings net of current maturities 802,462           794,041           

Total liabilities 1,053,377       1,043,564       

Net position:

Total net position (deficit) 5,043,256       4,735,531       

Total liabilities and net position 6,096,633$     5,779,094$     



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual Budget

YTD YTD YTD

6/30/2023 10/31/2023 6/30/2023 Variance

Revenues and other support

District Tax Revenues 6,036,813$     2,018,803$   2,018,803$   -  0%

Rents 184,057         63,909  71,667  (7,758)   96%

Other revenues 7,765         -  -  -   

Total revenues 6,228,635  2,082,712  2,090,470  (7,758)   

Expenses

Professional fees - executive director 175,433  84,334  61,667  (22,667)  -37%

Professional fees - Assistant 84,246  39,221  36,667  (2,555)   -7%

Professional fees 291,779  91,531  104,033  12,503    12%

Supplies 6,150  8,386  667  (7,720)   -1158%

Purchased services 4,100  1,500  3,220  1,720    53%

Repairs and maintenance 24,729  10,175  14,500  4,325    30%

Rents 20,430  5,733  6,810  1,077    16%

Utilities 14,820  4,410  4,000  (410) -10%

Insurance 125,911  60,486  53,482  (7,004)   -13%

Depreciation and amortization 167,612  56,133  63,467  7,334    

Interest 66,973  16,120  12,783  (3,337)   -26%

Travel, meeting and conferences 8,691  8,029  5,000  (3,029)   -61%

Other expenses 22,684  2,467  11,524  9,057    79%

Community projects and programs 264,058  - 87,333 87,333    100%

Total expenses 1,277,617  388,526  465,151  76,625    

Operating gains 4,951,017  1,694,186  1,625,319  68,867    4%

Transfers (4,935,976)  (2,001,911)  (1,699,899)  

Increase(Decrease) in net position 15,041  (307,725)  (74,580)  

Net position at  beginning of the year 5,028,215  5,043,256  -  
Net position at the  end of the period 5,043,256$     4,735,531$   (74,580)$        



Statements of Cash Flows

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual Budget

YTD YTD YTD

6/30/2023 10/31/2023 6/30/2023

Increase(Decrease) in net position 15,041$           (307,725)$       (74,581)$        

Add Non Cash items

Depreciation 167,612           56,133             63,467           

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Grant and other receivables 28,733             (1,710,984)      -                      

Prepaid expenses and deposits (44,631)            32,248             -                      

Deferred outflows of resources 0                       -                        

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (41,609)            (2,600)              -                      

Deferred revenues -                        -                        

Net Cash provided(used) by operating activities 125,146           (1,932,929)      (11,114)          

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment (0)                      0                       -                      

Changes in assets limited to use (152,470)         (45,333)            -                      

Net Cash used in investing activities (152,470)         (45,333)            -                      

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on debt borrowings (17,818)            (7,213)              -                      

Net cash used by financing activities (17,818)            (7,213)              -                      

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (45,141)            (1,985,475)      (11,114)          

Cash at the beginning of the year 2,505,423       2,460,281       204,720         

Cash at the end of the period 2,460,281$     474,806$         193,606$       



Balance Sheets

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT District Jaber As of District Jaber As of

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 6/30/2023 10/31/2023 10/31/2023 10/31/2023

Assets

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents 2,460,281$    -$  2,460,281$     474,806$        -$  474,806$         

Grant and other receivables 306,329 0 306,329 2,017,313 0 2,017,313

Prepaid expenses and deposits 153,460 (0) 153,460 121,212 (0) 121,212

Total current assets 2,920,070 (0) 2,920,070 2,613,331 (0) 2,613,331

Due To Due From 24,037 (24,037) 0 24,037 (24,037) 0

Assets limited as to use 0 862,163 862,163 0 907,496 907,496

Capital Assets, net of accumulated depreciation 1,295,484 815,700 2,111,184 1,251,817 803,233 2,055,051

4,239,590 1,653,826 5,893,416 3,889,185 1,686,692 5,575,877

Other Assets (0) 0 (0) (0) 0 (0)

Deferred outflows of resources 203,217 203,217 203,217 0 203,217

Total assets 4,442,807 1,653,826 6,096,633 4,092,402 1,686,692 5,779,094

Liabilities and Net Position

Current liabilities:

Current maturities of debt borrowings 22,624 0 22,624 23,832 0 23,832

Accounts payable and accrued expenses 25,074 0 25,074 22,474 0 22,474

Total current liabilities 47,698 0 47,698 46,306 0 46,306

Deferred revenue 203,217 0 203,217 203,217 0 203,217

Debt borrowings net of current maturities 802,462 0 802,462 794,041 0 794,041

Total liabilities 1,053,378 0 1,053,377 1,043,564 0 1,043,564

Net position:

Total net position (deficit) 3,389,429 1,653,826 5,043,256 3,048,838 1,686,692 4,735,531

Total liabilities and net position $4,442,807 $1,653,826 $6,096,633 $4,092,401 $1,686,692 $5,779,094



Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual

District Jaber YTD District Jaber YTD

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 6/30/2023 10/31/2023 10/31/2023 10/31/2023

Revenues and other support

District Tax Revenues 6,036,813 0 6,036,813 2,018,803 0 2,018,803

Rents (7,765) 191,822 184,057 0 63,909 63,909

Other revenues 7,765 0 7,765 0 0 0

Total revenues 6,036,813 191,822 6,228,635 2,018,803 63,909 2,082,712

Expenses
Professional fees - executive director 175,433 0 175,433 84,334 0 84,334

Professional fees - Assistant 84,246 0 84,246 39,221 0 39,221

Professional fees 282,128 9,651 291,779 88,383 3,148 91,531

Supplies 6,150 0 6,150 8,386 0 8,386

Purchased services 4,100 0 4,100 1,500 0 1,500

Repairs and maintenance 249 24,480 24,729 0 10,175 10,175

Rents 20,430 0 20,430 5,733 0 5,733

Utilities 2,479 12,341 14,820 759 3,651 4,410

Insurance 125,911 0 125,911 60,486 0 60,486

Depreciation and amortization 130,212 37,400 167,612 43,666 12,467 56,133

Interest 66,975 0 66,975 16,120 0 16,120

Travel, meeting and conferences 8,691 0 8,691 8,029 0 8,029

Other expenses 20,691 1,993 22,683 866 1,601 2,467

Community projects and programs 264,058 0 264,058 0 0 0

Total expenses 1,191,754 85,865 1,277,618 357,484 31,042 388,526

Operating gains 4,845,059 105,957 4,951,016 1,661,319 32,866 1,694,186

Transfers (4,935,976) 0 (4,935,976) (2,001,911) 0 (2,001,911)

Increase(Decrease) in net position (90,917) 105,957 15,040 (340,592) 32,866 (307,725)

Net position at  beginning of the year 3,480,346 1,547,869 5,028,216 3,389,430 1,653,826 5,043,256
Net position at the  end of the period 3,389,429 1,653,826 5,043,256 3,048,838 1,686,692 4,735,531



Statements of Cash Flows

CITY OF ALAMEDA HEALTHCARE DISTRICT

Actual Actual

District Jaber YTD District Jaber YTD

6/30/2023 6/30/2023 6/30/2023 10/31/2023 10/31/2023 10/31/2023

Increase(Decrease) in net position (90,917) 105,957 15,040 (340,592) 32,866 (307,725)

Add Non Cash items

Depreciation 130,212 37,400 167,612 43,666 12,467 56,133

Changes in operating assets and liabilities

Grant and other receivables 28,733 0 28,733 (1,710,984) 0 (1,710,984)

Prepaid expenses and deposits (44,631) 0 (44,631) 32,248 0 32,248

Deferred outflows of resources

Due To Due From (9,113) 9,113 0 0 0 0

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (41,607) 0 (41,607) (2,601) 0 (2,601)

Deferred revenues 0 0 0 0

Net Cash provided(used) by operating activities (27,324) 152,470 125,146 (1,978,262) 45,333 (1,932,929)

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of Property Plant and Equipment 0 0 0 0 (0) 0

Changes in assets limited to use 0 (152,470) (152,470) 0 (45,333) (45,333)

Net Cash used in investing activities 0 (152,470) (152,470) 0 (45,333) (45,333)

Cash flows from financing activities

Principal payments on debt borrowings (17,818) 0 (17,818) (7,213) 0 (7,213)

Net cash used by financing activities (17,818) 0 (17,818) (7,213) 0 (7,213)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents (45,142) 0 (45,142) (1,985,475) (0) (1,985,475)

Cash at the beginning of the year 2,505,423 (0) 2,505,423 2,460,281 (0) 2,460,281

Cash at the end of the period 2,460,281 (0) 2,460,281 474,806 (0) 474,806



MEETING DATE: December 11, 2023 

TO:  City of Alameda Health Care District, Board of Directors 

FROM: Deborah E. Stebbins, Executive Director 

SUBJECT:  Approval of FY 2022-2023 Parcel Tax True-Up Transfer to 
Alameda Health System 

Action 

Recommendation to transfer the $657,453 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 as the parcel tax 
true-up transfer to Alameda Health System.       

Background 

The attached document outlines an analysis of the fiscal period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 
2023. As a reminder, the true-up transfer is recommended after the end of the fiscal 
year and after the annual audit is complete.   

Total parcel tax revenue collected for the period was $ 6,036,813 was an increase 
compared to taxes collected in the prior year.  This number is reduced by the total 
District expenses for FY 2022, adjusted for depreciation (a non-cash item) and adding 
back the principal payment on the loan maintained by the District for a net available for 
transfer to AHS of $4,957,453.  Earlier transfers to AHS for the FY 2022 year totaled 
$4,300,000. 

The recommendation is to transfer $657,453 immediately after receipt of the District tax 
revenue in mid-December, 2023.  



City of Alameda Health Care District

Analysis of Asset Transfer

For the period July 1, 2014 through June 30, 2023

6/30/2023

Actual Property Taxes Received for the period 7/1 to 6/30:

12/15/2022 2,992,160       2,992,160     

3/7/2023 3,576               3,576             

4/4/2023 41,124             41,124           

4/13/2023 2,687,858       2,687,858     

5/10/2023 4,470               4,470             

6/20/2023 1,296               1,296             

7/11/2023 2,473               2,473             

8/24/2023 303,856          303,856         

6,036,813     

Interest income and other -                  

Non-Cash Equity adjustments related to capital assets -                  

Total District Revenue 6,036,813     

Less  Non Cash Items -                  

Adjusted Revenue 6,036,813     

Non-labor cash expenses of the district 1,191,754

Less  depreciation and amortization (130,212)       

Adjusted Expenses 1,061,542     

Capital Outlays of the District 0

Principal Payment on Mortgage 17,818           

Subtotal Adjusted Outlays 1,079,360     

Sub total Funds Available to Transfer (Revenues less Expenses) 4,957,453     

Debt payment 

Actual Transfers for the period

2/16/2022 (2,400,000)      

8/15/2022 (1,800,000)      

12/15/2022 (835,976)         

2/21/2023 (1,900,000)      (1,900,000)    

3/31/2023 (400,000)         (400,000)       

8/17/2023 (2,000,000)      (2,000,000)    

(4,300,000)    

Sub total outlays and transfers (4,300,000)    

Residual balance due AHS(from AHS) 657,453         

Purpose: To evaluate the past fiscal period July to June and true up the amounts

transferred to the Alameda Hospital System based on terms of the agreements.



 
 

December 11, 2023  

 

Memorandum to:                            City of Alameda Health Care District               
                                                       Board of Directors  

 
From:             Debi Stebbins 
            Executive Director 
 
RE:                                                 Proposed Board Meeting Schedule for 2024 
 
Monday, February 12, 2024           December Tax Installment to AHS  
 
            Distribution from Jaber Funds to AHS  
Monday, April 8, 2024                     Review and Approval of District FY 24-25 Budget  
 
                                                       Review of Annual Audit Engagement  
Monday, June 10, 2024                  Adoption of Parcel Tax Levy Resolution  
 
                                                       Review and Approval of 24-24 Parcel Tax Budget  
Monday, August 12, 2024               Mutual Certification and Indemnification with County 
                        Review of FY 24-25 Insurance Renewals  
                                                       Executive Director Evaluation and Contract Review  
 
Tuesday, October 15, 2024            Review and Acceptance of FY 24-25 Audit  
                                                       Review of CY 24-25 Meeting Calendar  
 

        Election of Officers and Appointment to Liaison Positions  
Monday, December 9, 2024           Recommendation to Approve True-Up Tax Distribution to AHS  



 
 
  Memorandum To:  City of Alameda Health Care District 

   Board of Directors 
 

  From:   Robert Deutsch, MD   
    President 

 
  RE:               Proposed Officers and Liaison Positions - 2023 

The annual election of City of Alameda Health Care District Officers usually 
takes place at the October Board meeting.  It was delayed in 2022 due to 
the possible changes in the composition of the Board.  I am proposing the 
following slate of officers and liaison positions for 2023/ 

Article III, Section 1., Officers of the District Bylaws provides for the election of 
District Officers. Officers shall hold their office for terms of one (1) year or until 
such time as a successor is elected. An officer may be removed from office by 
a majority of the Board of Directors at any time. Officers may serve consecutive 
terms.   

Proposed AHCD Officers and Liaisons for 2021-2022   

 
Office/Liaison Position  Board Member  

President / Representative #1 to City of Alameda Liaison Committee  Robert Deutsch, MD  

1st Vice President  Gayle Codiga  

2nd Vice President    Stewart Chen, DC 

Secretary  Jeff Cambra  

Treasurer  David Sayen  

Alameda Health System Liaison  David Sayen  

Community Health Liaison    Stewart Chen, DC  

Alameda Hospital Liaison  Robert Deutsch, MD  

Representative #2 on City of Alameda Liaison Committee    Jeff Cambra  

 



December 11, 2023 

Memorandum to: City of Alameda Health Care District 
Board of Directors 

From: Jeff Cambra, Director 
Debi Stebbins, Executive Director 

RE: Recommendation on Roofing Contractor for 1359 Pearl 
Street 

Recommendation: 

We are recommending that the District engage Central Roofing & Restoration of Alameda, 
California to replace the four roofs on 1359 Pearl Street, an apartment building owned by 
the District at the cost of $138,204.  Two bids were received in response to the Request 
for Proposal (RFP) sent out.  The amount of the bids were comparable and we are 
recommending Central Roofing since they pay prevailing wage rates and provided 
excellent references.  There is a sufficient balance in the Jaber bank account to cover this 
expenditure.   

Background: 

On November 17, 2023, a Request for Proposal for the repair/replacement of the roofs 
on the 1359 Pearl Street property were sent out to several roofing contractors.  A list of 
the recipients is attached to this memorandum. 

Two responses to the RFP were received from: Central Roofing and Restoration 
(Alameda, CA) and Innovation Roofing System (Antioch, CA).  Both firms provided 
detailed bids on replacement of the roofs, gutters and downspouts on the four sections 
of the apartment complex at 1359 Pearl Street in Alameda.  The roof is quite old and 
has experienced leakage in recent years.   

Both bids were comparable in price and proposed using the same asphalt shingle 
roofing product which has a 30 year warranty.  Both firms provided the same level of 
proof of insurance. 

The deciding factors for the recommendation to select Central Roofing & Restoration 
was their statement that they pay prevailing wages and presented three reputable local 
references, including work for another public agency. 

Note:  On December 6, 2023, Innovation Roofing withdrew their bid proposal due to 
inability to provide prevailing wage numbers for their work force. 



 
 

 
December 11, 2023 
 
Memorandum to:  City of Alameda Health Care District 
    Board of Directors 
 
From    Jeff Cambra  
     
 
RE:    Language for RFP  

 

 
Here is the language requesting the "general" services that the bidder should include in 
their bid. You have the language I suggested we also add to the RFP for specific 
details. Hopefully, other directors can add to the language. 
 
"Please provide a detailed description of the services that are provided as part of your 
“standard” property management agreement and the cost of these services. Please 
note any details that would apply to the specific building relating to the commercial 
verses residential use. Additionally, please note any “typical” management activities that 
are specifically excluded and that would result in additional charges to the District. How 
are these additional services billed? Please provide billing rates for these additional 
services." 
 



 
Roofer Vendor List 

 
 
Advanced  Roofing 
Attn: Dave Lopez 
1405 Viking St 
Alameda, Ca 94502 
510-522-2565 
E: Advancedroofs337@att.net 
 
All Weather Roofing 
880 Fruitvale Avenue 
Oakland, Ca 94601 
510-534-1660 
E: allweatherroofing5@yahoo.com 
 
Banner Roofing Company 
2424 Clement Avenue 
Alameda, Ca 94501 
510-895-4433 
E: mbanner99@comcast.net 
https://www.bannerroofingcompany.com/ 
 
Bay Roofing Company 
3016 Adams St. 
Alameda, Ca 94501 
510-521-8300 
https://www.bayroofingalameda.com/ 
 
Central Bay Roofing & Restoration 
1814 Clement Avenue 
Alameda, CA 94501 
510-521-7334 
E:info@centralbayroofing.com 
https://www.centralbayroofing.com/ 
 
GRC Roofing Co. 
1000 90th Avenue 
Oakland, CA 94603 
510-568-0531 
https://www.roofingandguttersoakland.com/ 
 
Innovation Roofing Systems 
2348 Chardonnay Way 
Antioch, CA 

mailto:allweatherroofing5@yahoo.com
https://www.bannerroofingcompany.com/
https://www.bayroofingalameda.com/
https://www.roofingandguttersoakland.com/


 
510-330-3834 
E: innovationroofing@yahoo.com 
https://innovationroofingsystems.net/ 
 
 
Lovett & Lovett Roofing Co. 
2525 East 10th Street 
Oakland, CA 94601 
510-532-7663 
https://lovettroofing.net/ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://innovationroofingsystems.net/
https://lovettroofing.net/

	District Open Session Agenda December 11 2023 
	Alamedaafs23
	AHCD Board Meeting 121123-CAO Presentation
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Alameda County EMS �Ambulance Patient Offload Time (APOT)�October 2023
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16

	Leapfrog Article
	2023.12.12 AHCD Board Report from AH Med Staff - DRAFT (1)
	ED Report Dec 2023  (1)
	ACHD Open Session October 10, 2023 Mins.  (1)
	Financial Statement Cover Sep 2023
	Alameda FYE 2022 23 YTD 9 30 23
	AFS
	AFS Split

	Financial Statement Cover Oct 2023
	Alameda FYE 2022 23 YTD 10 31 23 (1)
	AFS
	AFS Split

	True up Cover memo FY 2023  (1)
	FYE 6 30 23 True Up Calculation (1)
	True Up

	District 2024 Meeting Dates  
	Officers and Liaisons Memo Feb. 13, 2023 (1)
	Cover memo on Roofing Contract
	RFP Language Memo - J. Cambra 
	Brief List of Roofers Working in Alameda (2)



